
 
   

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2021  
1:00 PM CONSENT HEARINGS 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
1. Call meeting to order  

 
2. Appointment of Chair  

 
THAT ……………………… shall be appointed as the Chair of the Committee of 
Adjustment shall now and herein forward convene the position of Chair.  
 

3. Declarations of pecuniary interest 
 

4. Approval of agenda 
 

THAT Committee approves the Agenda dated January 6, 2020. 
 

5. Approval of Minutes 
 
THAT the Minutes of July 7, 2020 be approved.  
 

6. New and Other Business – none 
 

THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD ELECTRONICALLY USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING. 
 
To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please enter the meeting ID 
provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, 
please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 
 
        +1 647 374 4685 Canada 
        +1 647 558 0588 Canada 
        +1 778 907 2071 Canada 
        +1 438 809 7799 Canada 

        +1 587 328 1099 Canada     Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097 
 
To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device) and with either digital audio or separate phone 
line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital address below into your search engine or 
follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when prompted.  

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097    Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097


 
7. New Applications  

    
7.1 B7-2020 Rutledge Surplus Dwelling Severance 
 
THAT Committee approve application B7-2020 subject to the following conditions…. 
 
7.2 B8-2020 Ferris Boundary Adjustment 
 
THAT Committee approve application B8-2020 subject to the following conditions…. 
 
7.3 B7-2018 Mockingbird Lot Creation 
 
THAT Committee approve application B7-2018 subject to the following conditions…. 
 
7.4 B1-2020 Mansfield Ski Easement (changing of hydro condition) 
 
THAT Committee approve application B1-2020 subject to the following conditions…. 

     
8. Items for information only  

8.1  Resignation of Paul Mills 
 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
THAT Committee adjourns the meeting at _______ to meet again on at the call of the 
Chair. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 

 

   

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT  
TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2020  

2:00 PM  
ELECTRONIC MEETING - MINUTES 

 
Present:   Earl Hawkins, Deputy Mayor 

Ken Cufaro, Councillor 
Kim Lyon  
Paul Mills 
Bart Wysokinski 

 
Staff:   Tracey Atkinson, BES, MCIP, RPP, Planner 
     
  
Public:    Finley McEwen. Karl Walsh, Wayne Goodfellow, Lisa 

Goodfellow, Mike Jones, Liz Anthony    

    
1/ Call meeting to order  

 
The meeting was called to order by the Planner, who assumed the position of 
Chair.  
 

2/ Appointment of Chair  
 
Moved by Hawkins and seconded by Cufaro 
THAT Paul Mills shall be appointed as the Chair of the Committee of Adjustment 
shall now and herein forward convene the position of Chair. Carried  
 
The Planner vacated the Chair, and Chair Mills assumed the position.  
 

3/ Declarations of pecuniary interest 
 

4/ Approval of agenda 
 

Moved by Cufaro and seconded by Lyon 
THAT Committee approves the Agenda dated July 7, 2020. Carried 
 

5/ New and Other Business – none 
 

6/ Planning Legislation 
 

6.1 Overview of Ontario Planning Framework 
 
T. Atkinson provided an overview of the planning framework in Ontario.  A slide 



Page 2 of 3 
 

show is attached.  
 
6.2 Quick Links to Planning Resource Materials 
 
 

7/ New Applications  
    
7.1 B01-2020 Mansfield Ski Easement 
 
 
The planner provided a summary of the applications.  Discussions ensued 
regarding hydro poles, existing trees and the draft conditions.  
 

Moved by: Hawkins and Seconded by: Lyon 
 
That Application No. B01-2020, submitted by Mansfield Ski Club Inc., Rosalie Tough, 
Donald William Tough, Mark Lautens and 2724264 Ontario Corp. for approximately 7 
metres easement be approved, subject to the following: 
 

• This easement applies to LOTS 15 and 16, CONCESSION 6 EHS (PT BLK 20, PL 
7M-4 AND PART LOT 15 & 16 CONCESSION 6 EHS AND PART OFBLOCK B, 
PLAN 86, MULMUR; DES AS PTS 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, PLAN 7R-6574)  and is in 
favour of parcel rolls 117801 (Tough), 117600 (Lautens), and 117700 (2724264 
Ontario Corp. 

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal 
year on all related properties, if the amount is known. 

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to 
one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file 
at the Township solicitor’s office. 

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, 
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was 
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The 
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy shall 
be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.  

• The existing easement be deregistered or an undertaking by the solicitor that the 
existing easement be deregistered within 30 days of the registration of the new 
easement.  

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and 
property standards. 

• Any existing mature trees within the new easement be relocated elsewhere on 
the subject lands to the satisfaction of the Township.  

• The existing hydro pole be relocated outside of the easement.  
 

Motion Carried.  
 

 
7.2 B02-2020 Wallace Estate (Goodfellow) 
 
The planner provided a summary of the applications.  Ms. Anthony expressed 
concerns regarding the condition of the dwelling. The Director of Public Works 



Page 3 of 3 
 

recommended a road widening and moving the driveway.  Discussions ensued 
regarding the draft conditions.  

 
Moved by: Cufaro and seconded by: Wysokinski 
 
That Application No. B02-2020, submitted by Wayne Goodfellow for Samuel Wallace 
Estate for a boundary adjustment be approved, subject to the following: 
 

• This boundary adjustment applies to rolls numbers 221600000402000 and 
221600000401980, resulting in a vacant parcel of 29 ha and developed parcel of 
3.2 ha. 

• Confirmation of the status of the Estate of Shirley Irene Wallace, to the satisfaction 
of the Township’s solicitor.  

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal 
year on all related properties, if the amount is known. 

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to 
one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file 
at the Township solicitor’s office. 

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, 
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was 
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The 
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy shall 
be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.  

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and 
property standards. 

• Road Widening of 3.0 metres to be taken along the entire frontage of both 
properties, if not already taken. 

• Section 50(3) of the Planning Act shall apply 

• The applicant shall apply for and a new entrance be approved and installed to 
relocate the existing driveway serving the house to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Public Works.   

 
Motion Carried.  

     
8/ Items for information only -- none 

 

9/ Adjournment 
 

Moved by Lyons and seconded by Hawkins 
THAT Council Committee adjourns the meeting at 3:02 to meet again on at the 
call of the Chair. Carried.  



Application for Gonsent
Under Section 53 of the Planning Act

SUMITIIARY OF FEES

LOT CREATION/BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT: $2500
EASEMENT/OTHER: $2000
CHANGE OF CONDITIONS TO A CONSENT
DECISION: $1000
"NVCA FEE IF IN REGULATED OR NHS AREA

DATE RECEIVED

RollNumber:22-1

Submission of the Apptication

-0000

tr One application form for eadr parcel to be severed.tr Application Fees
tr Pre-consuftation with NVCA, NEC or Road Authority (if required)tr Sketch or Survey

Gomplebness of the Application

The information in this form must be qlovided by the applicant with the appropriate fee. tf the infomation and fee are not provided, the application will
be refumed or refused for further consideration until the information and f66 hive been provided.

The application fom also sets out other information that will assist t!9 Township and others in their planning evaluation of the consent application. To
ensure the quickest and most complete review, this information should be submitted at the time of apiticatioi. ln the absence of this info#kion, it may
not be possible to do a complete review within the legblated time fiame for making a decision. As a i&u[, the application may be refused.

.s3 1
s6:

Width of streeUroad m

Concession & UHS

DC#

il-r L--J,.- i. +ol

l.o"3 2rs

t7 *t9

TeleohonelFax
.'yri - LLq-38a4

RscName

/aLot

No.

€ /?- 9yo-6i6€
Name

if o$,ner may

e-

a behalf

bJu- 'R.-+

4a<.>>rL;.xat,S\tfJfA

3 Lq"

(is

Road Private
maintained road

year round

Email

Address .-a
Jte uS

Charges, or encumbrances in land

68@ anner-i I "c,aY+u|-

Codea tu)

.-5r7- ?JS -4,J. ?e
Telephone:

I



n PrivateWell
tr CommunalWell
tr MunicipalWater
tr Other:

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
E Proposd

tr Eristingtr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed ?st In't

Area

(m)

Fr
,{''t

Sewage Disposal
F Private Septic
tr
tr

Communal Septic

s
iot

Js 3 ^^.

Storm Drainage
tr Senver

Othen

u
Tile Dninage

ENo
tr Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tib runs

Backs (m)

{mxm) Consbudion /

Ogfrazfuz<zrtt
d

Front Rear Side Side

(,ll.2!
Area

Proposed
Gonskuc*ion

and Proposed buildings and Structures

Time.useType of
Building or
Sfucfure

continued (for
existing

buildings &

14 JaJaDate

J S ,71.,q..

t

Lind4. 56rvicingDescriplion and

land or

D+ c R.*+t
to be

e L+e
or chargedof to

lol ftrm sevennce. lot

-

Purpose,

transaction (cfieck

Transbr
A charge

? Creationofanewlot
tr A lease

tr Addition to a lot
tl A conec*ion of titb

tr An easernent
tl Other

2



or use uses)

mine siteAn

A

Flood Plain

A locally

,2 or3

A Landfill

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage tacilities

Zoning ByJaw Amendrnent Minister,s Zoning Order
Plan of SuMMsion:

Offcial
Related

Plan Amendmenl
(amendment), Consent or

Applications under the Planning Act, if any Including Official Plan,

-iak?a-P nee;e--e
Cunent Zoning

Are tftere any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subiect lands? tr yes Ei No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock fucili$ orwrer for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.caldepartnentvolannino

Are the lands part of a Nutsient Management plan?

Please provide plan number and date approved by OMAFM

tr Yes ENo

Doe_s the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf

n Yes aNo

any of the uses or

Use or

on the

l-and, unless othenalse specific

if

v
or

,7

metres Please

an explanation conforms to the

-2ft-.cea<l /*,

? Status:

Has subject lands even been
Planning Ac{?

subject of an application under the

File#

Cunent fficial Plan

?

3



Has any land been severed fom the parcel originally acquiled by the owner of the subjed land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of kansFr, the name of tansferee and the land use:

trYe ENo

lf this application is a re'submission of a pr€vious consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has th-e subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdMsion or consent under the planning Aa?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

n Yes INo tr Unknown

of theHistory Land

Does the.proposed a,pplication confurm to ordoes not conflir*with the Provincial Plans, induding the tGreenbelt Plan and Growth Plan: \

x
Signaturehaving

be required to acoompany
Name of knorledge of the poli,cy

support the abore sbtement of
straternents- A report may

tr Yes trNo

this application and
consistency-

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth plan area? ? tr Yes tl No

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbeh plan area? ? tr Yes DNo

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Potby Statement and any other policy Statements
issued under subsection 3(1 ) ofthe Ptanning Act

. 
Name of indMdual having knowledge of the policy sfatements- A report may

be required to accompany this applicdion and support the above statement of
consistency" x

g Yes EINo

Are the subject lands in an area where condi$onal zoning may applf

lf yes, provide details of hos this application conforms to official plan condfulonal

It No

zoning policies on a separate submission

tr Yes

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Offcial Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tr Yes El No

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a setlernent area? U Yes ENo

Create a new setflement area? tr Yes ENo

4



-a--L"-A <'

-J"*-*-b*
e4RJ {7+t1

Ctl RJ t"l

lEl Yes trNoHas any land been severed fiom the or(7inal, 4O hecfare (approx.-) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviodng this application, ie. health departnent, conseruation
etc.

The application shall be accompanied by a sketcfr showing the follwing:

tr The boundarbs and dimensions of the srbject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
tr The boundaries and dimensions of any hnd onrned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subjec't land
tr The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
tr The location of all land previously severed fiom the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
tr The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subjed land and adjacent lands that inthe qlinion of the applicant may

affect'the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, dver or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

tr The existing uses on adjacent lands
tr The location, width andiame of any roads within or abuting ttre subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
tr The location and nature of any easement afiecting the subject land

5



c
i
c

..1

(



t,

OtlUlrlERS AUTHOR|ZAT|OI{

4. I autfrodzed

SWORN DECLARATIoITI oF APPLICANT

am tre owner of he lands subject to tris applicafion hereby agree trc tre following:

to make his applicalion of my behalf.

1' Tovmship staffor heir representatives are au&orized to enter my property for tre purposes of evaluating tris application.
2' I ac-krrowledge and agree to pay all mats associate{*fft.nr processing and evalualion of fris applicalion, including any peer reviews

and.consulting fees. These costs may be deducted frog Ere dbposit or invoiced direcflx at tre dLcietion of fre Township. Should ilris
application be appealed q gP L*l Planning Appeal Tribunal, f am aware nat r wil m responsmrr *o agr* to pry Ji t[o irtrt o tofte Local Planning AppealTribunal prccess.

3' For tre purposes of fre Freedom of lnformation and Protection of Privacy 4sq I authorize and consent to fte use by or tre disdosure toany person or publie 
lody of any personal information frat is collected under he autrority of tre planning mf ror ru purpt"e" orprocessing his application, and furher lautrorize my agentfortris application to provide 

"ny 
of my personal inflalion tratwill be includedin ftis apptirration or milected during he processingofiris appticaridi.

x

tris

of he

oah and say (orsolemnly declare) trattre informalion contained in his applicalion is
contained in he documents hat accompany tris apdication is hue.

Swom (ordedared) before me at he in he

day 20aa

Treasurer
Township of Mulmur
Commissioner for Oathg

Applicant

6



CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 

758070 2ND LINE  EAST 

MULMUR, ONTARIO 

L9V 0G8 

NOTICE OF A COMPLETE APPLICATION AND A PUBLIC MEETING 

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended. 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars: 

MEETING DATE AND TIME: January 6, 2021 at 1:00pm 

APPLICATION NUMBER: B7-2020 

OWNER/APPLICANT: D&C Rutledge Ltd. 

LOCATION:  636592 COUNTY ROAD 19. 

PURPOSE:   CONSENT APPLICATION FOR A SURPLUS DWELLING AND EXCESS 
AGRICULUTRAL BUILDINGS TO A FARMING OPERATION, AS A 
RESULT OF A FARM CONSOLIDATION. 

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority 
of members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada   Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device) and with either digital 
audio or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the 
digital address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID 
when prompted.  

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097  Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097


Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours. 

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written 
submissions to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to 
give a provisional consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If 
you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in 
respect of the proposed consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map on next page.  For illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey.  

A digital version is available by email. 

Figure 1: Subject Lands 

mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca


Figure 2: Lands Subject to Consent 

Dated December 17, 2020 



Page 1 of 13 

TO:  

FROM: 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT:  

PLANNING REPORT 

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 

James Hunter Senior Planner BURPL

January 6, 2021 

B7-2020 Rutledge Consent Application – Surplus Dwelling 

PURPOSE 

The applicant is seeking a Consent to create one (1) new lot, deemed a surplus residence 
to a farming operation. 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONFIGURATIONS 

The existing lot configuration and conditions are illustrated on Figure 1. The lands subject 
to the Consent are reflected on Figure 2.  

FILE NO B7-2020 

ROLL NO 221600000318400 

OWNER D&C Rutledge Ltd. 

LOCATION / LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

636592 DUFFERIN COUNTY ROAD 19. 
CON 2 W E PT LOT 10. 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Agricultural 

ZONING: Countryside Area (A) 

NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 

NVCA Regulated: Yes (within regulated area) 

Application Submission Date: August 25, 2020 

Public Meeting Date: Wednesday January 6, 2021 



Page 2 of 13 
 

 
Figure 1: Existing Lot Configuration 

 

 
 

Figure 2: Lands Subject to Consent  
 

 



Page 3 of 13 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject lands are located at 636592 County Road 19 in the Township of Mulmur.  
 
The lands currently contain land holdings of 92.58 acres (37.5 hectares) and are currently 
used for agricultural land uses. The lands subject to the consent contain an existing 
dwelling and accessory agricultural buildings.  
 
The applicant has applied for a Consent to create one (1) new lot, deemed a surplus 
residence and accessory buildings to a farming operation, as a result of a farm 
consolidation. The new lot requested would contain an area of approximately 1.32 
hectares (3.2 acres), a depth of 153 metres (501 feet), and a frontage of 86 metres (282 
feet) along County Road 19. 
 
The retained agricultural lands would contain an area of approximately 35.7 hectares (88 
acres) and a frontage of approximately 514 metres (1,686 feet) along County Road 19. 
 
 
PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 
 
Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
 
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial 
interest related to land use planning and development. The PPS encourages the 
protection of agricultural areas for long term use, with protection stressed on prime 
agricultural lands (2.3).  
 
Permitted uses are limited to agricultural uses, agriculture-related uses, and on-farm 
diversified uses (2.3.3).  
 
Lot creation in prime agricultural areas is permitted for a residence surplus to a farming 
operation as a result of farm consolidation, provided that (2.3.4.1/2.4.2.3): 
 

1. The new lot will be limited to a minimum size needed to accommodate the use and 
appropriate sewage and water services.  

2. The planning authority ensures that new residential dwellings are prohibited on any 
remnant parcel of farmland created by the severance. The approach used to ensure 
that no new residential dwellings are permitted on the remnant parcel may be 
recommended by the Province, or based on municipal approaches which achieve 
the same objective. 

 
The proposed Consent is consistent with the PPS, subject to the attached Conditions.  
 
 
Growth Plan (August 2020) 
 
The Growth Plan builds on the PPS together with other Provincial Plans to inform 
decision-making regarding growth management and environmental protection particular to 



Page 4 of 13 
 

the GGH. The Growth Plan provides high-level policy direction relating to the development 
of healthy, safe, and balanced communities.  
 
The guiding principles of the Plan aim to support and enhance the long-term viability and 
productivity of agriculture by protecting prime agricultural areas. An Agricultural System is 
mapped by the Province, which identifies the subject lands as prime agricultural lands, 
with Class 1-3 soils (4.2.6).  
 
The retention of existing lots of record for agricultural uses is encouraged and the use of 
these lots for non-agricultural uses is discouraged (4.2.6.5).  
 
As the proposed Consent would retain the existing agricultural uses and operations and 
does not remove land from agricultural production operation, the application conforms to 
the policies and intent of the Growth Plan, subject to the attached conditions.  
 
 
Niagara Escarpment Plan (2017) 
 
The purpose of the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) is to provide for the maintenance and 
protection of the plan’s areas, and to ensure that development is compatible with the 
natural environment.  
 
The subject lands are located outside of the plans area. The NEP does not apply. 
 
 
Strategic Plan 
 
The application does not offend the Strategic Plan and would maintain the rural character 
of the area.  
 
 
Dufferin County Official Plan 
 
The subject lands are designated as ‘Countryside Area’ on Schedule B (Community 
Structure and Land Use), which includes the ‘Agricultural Area’ on Schedule C as a policy 
area. 
 
The designation includes prime agricultural areas, identified for protection, and selected to 
strengthen the continued viability of the agricultural community. The designation 
recognizes agriculture as the primary activity and land use. The Agricultural Areas are to 
be protected from fragmentation, development, and land uses unrelated to agriculture 
(4.2.1).  
 
Mirroring the Provincial plans, all types, sizes, and intensities of agricultural uses and 
normal farm practices will be promoted and protected in accordance with provincial 
standards (4.2.2).  
 



Page 5 of 13 
 

A secondary farm residence may be permitted on a lot, subject to satisfying the policies of 
the Official Plan. A consent for land division for such a dwelling is not permitted (4.2.2.c). 
The application does not propose a second dwelling; however, this policy should be noted.  
 
In order to avoid land use conflicts within the Agricultural Area designation, new land uses, 
including lot creation are required to comply with the Minimum Distance Separation 
Formulae, to ensure appropriate standards for separating incompatible uses from existing, 
new or expanding livestock facilities (4.2.3.b).  
 
Lot creation with the Agricultural Areas is discussed under section 4.2.5 of the County’s 
Official Plan. Key policies that apply includes the following: 
 

• Lot creation in the Agricultural Area will generally be discouraged and only 
permitted in accordance with provincial policy and the policies of the local municipal 
official plan. The minimum lot area of both the retained and severed lots will be 
established in the local municipal official plans in accordance with the lot creation 
policies for the uses set out below. (4.2.5.a).  
 

• For agriculture-related uses, the lot created will be limited to a minimum size 
needed to accommodate the use and appropriate sewage and water services 
(4.2.5.g).  
 

• The creation of new residential lots in the prime agricultural area shall not be 
permitted except in accordance with policy 4.2.5.c (4.2.5.g).  

 

• Where a previous or current farm acquisition has rendered a residence surplus to a 
farming operation, a consent may be permitted subject to the following conditions 
(4.2.5.c): 

i. the retained farm parcel will be zoned so as to prohibit the 
construction of any additional dwellings; 

ii. the new lot will be limited to a minimum size needed to accommodate 
the use and appropriate sewage and water services; and 

iii. the surplus dwelling parcel will be subject to Minimum Distance 
Separation I setback provisions, and be zoned to recognize the non-
farm residential use, as required. 

 
A Zoning By-law Amendment is required to prohibit the construction of any additional 
dwellings on the lands. This is further discussed in the following sections and implemented 
as a condition. 
 
The County’s Official Plan states that consents will not be granted if the application is 
contrary to the policies of this Plan or local municipal official plans (8.6.4). The conformity 
to the Township’s Official Plan must be demonstrated. This is further discussed in the 
following section. 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 13 
 

Official Plan 
 
The lands subject to the application are designated by the Township’s Official Plan as 
‘Agricultural’ on Schedule A1, illustrated on Figure 3.  
 
The lands contain ‘Pond & Flooded Lands’ and ‘Streams Without Associated Buffers’ 
according to Schedule B1, identified as Category One Natural Features. Category Two 
Natural Features are further shown on Schedule B2 of the Official Plan with the lands 
containing ‘Streams (With Associated Buffers)’. The features are shown on Figure 4. The 
subject lands are identified by Schedule B3 of the Official Plan (Physical Constraints and 
Hazards) as containing ‘Flood Plain & Low Lying Areas’, ‘Meander Belts’, and a ‘Moderate 
Slope (15-30%)’.  
 
The portion of the lands that are identified for the new (severed) lot are located outside of 
all identified natural features.  
 
 

Figure 3: Land Use Designation  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 13 
 

 

Figure 4: Category One Natural Features   

 
 

 
Lands that are designated as Agricultural are considered prime agricultural areas, 
protected for long-term use for agriculture (5.9/6.1). 
 
Permitted uses under the designation includes agricultural and related uses, secondary 
uses, and a single detached dwelling (6.1.3).  
 
A residence surplus to a farming operation is defined by the Official Plan as an existing, 
habitable farm residence that is rendered surplus as a result of farm consolidation (the 
acquisition of additional farm parcels to be operated as one farm operation). 
 
Lot creation in prime agricultural areas may be permitted for a residence surplus to a 
farming operation as a result of a farm consolidation, provided that the Township ensures 
that new residential dwellings are prohibited on any vacant remnant parcel of farmland 
created by the severance. As recommend by the Province, the approach is used to ensure 
that no new residential dwellings are permitted on the remnant parcel or other approaches 
which achieve the same objective (5.9.c).  
 
New lots within the Agricultural designation are evaluated under section 6.1.7 of the 
Township’s Official Plan. Key policies related to the application include the following: 
 

• Existing agricultural parcels should not be subdivided into smaller parcels of land 
where the severance would reduce the long-term flexibility and viability of the 
existing farm unit.  

 



Page 8 of 13 

• The severance of a surplus dwelling is dependant on the dwelling being habitable,
the requirements of the Zoning By-law are met, and the lot area is kept to a
minimum.

• Neither the dwelling on the severed nor retained part was originally created for the
purpose of accommodating farm help nor created as an additional single dwelling
unit or as a detached accessory dwelling unit.

• The farm operation severing the lot must have a base of operations elsewhere in
the Township or in an immediately adjacent Township.

• New land uses including lot creation are required to comply with the minimum
distance separation formulae (MDS).

• Such severances will be considered only on the basis of one per farm holding
defined as the original farm lot of approximately 40 hectares (Township half-
lot) and where no more than one lot has been previously created by
severance.

• Wherever possible and practical, remnant lots shall be required to be merged with
adjacent parcels under the ownership of the same farming enterprise, including
small, existing, vacant non-farm lots, to consolidate the farm into larger blocks,
eliminate the non-farm residential lot and avoid the sterilization of the remnant
parcel as a building lot.

• Where a remnant parcel is created, which cannot be merged with another
holding under the ownership of the same farming enterprise, it shall be re-
zoned, as a condition of consent approval and prior to the issuance of the
certificate of consent, so that it cannot, in future, be used for either farm-related or
non-farm residential purposes.

In accordance with the policies of the Official Plan, the remnant (retained) parcel requires 
a Zoning By-law Amendment to prevent the lands from being used for either farm-related 
or non-farm residential purposes in the future. The rezoning of the lands is executed as a 
condition.   

As previously discussed under the County’s Official Plan, consents will not be granted if 
the application is contrary to the policies of Township’s Official Plan. The policies for lot 
creation under section 6.1.7 are specific, that a consent may be considered only on the 
basis of one per farm holding defined as the original farm lot of approximately 40 hectares, 
and where no more than one (1) lot has been previously created by a severance. The 
original farm lot contains two (2) existing lots that were previously severed. The subject 
consent would create a third lot for non-agricultural uses.  

To maintain conformity to the Township’s Official Plan, an Official Plan Amendment (OPA) 
application is required. 



Page 9 of 13 
 

 
Zoning By-law 
 
The subject lands are zoned ‘Countryside Area (A)’ by Schedule A, illustrated on Figure 5.   
 

Figure 5: Zoning  

 
 
Permitted uses under the Countryside Area (A) zone includes single detached dwellings, 
agricultural uses, and agricultural-related uses (4.1.1). 
 
Under section 4.1.2 of the Zoning By-law, lots within the zone require a minimum lot 
frontage of 100 meters and a minimum lot area of 2.0 hectares (4.94 acres). 
 
A Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBA) application is required to recognize the deficient lot 
size and area of the severed lot. The applicant is advised to apply to rezone the severed 
lands to the ‘Rural Residential (RR)’ zone.  
 
In accordance with the County Official Plan and Township’s Official Plan, a Zoning By-law 
Amendment is further required for the remnant parcel of land, to prevent the lands from 
being used for either farm-related or non-farm residential purposes in the future.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10 of 13 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The costs of processing with the application are borne by the applicants. 

AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Public and agency comments are being provided as separate correspondence to this 
report.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Consent applications must demonstrate conformity and consistency with the Provincial, 
County, and Township’s plans and policies.  

A Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBA) application is required to ensure that new residential 
dwellings are prohibited on the remnant parcel of farmland created by the severance, and 
to rezone the severed lands to the Rural Residential (RR) zone. 

The Township’s policies for lot creation under the current Agricultural land use designation 
(section 6.1.7) are explicit. A consent may be considered only on the basis of one per farm 
holding defined as the original farm lot of approximately 40 hectares, and where no more 
than one (1) lot has been previously created by a severance. The original farm lot contains 
two (2) existing lots that were previously severed. 

As discussed throughout this report, consents will not be granted if the application is 
contrary to the policies of County’s Official Plan or the Township’s Official Plan. An Official 
Plan Amendment (OPA) is therefore required to permit a consent.   

Subject to agency and public comments, it is recommended that this application be 
deferred until the applicant obtains approval from the Township for an Official Plan 
Amendment.  

Respectfully submitted, 

______________________________
Senior Planner, BURPl.  



Page 11 of 13 

DRAFT DECISION 

Date:  January 6, 2021 

Moved by:  ________________________ 

Seconded by: _________________________ 

That Application No. B7-2020, submitted by D&C Rutledge Ltd. for Consent be deferred, 
until the applicant obtains approval of an Official Plan Amendment.  

Approval of consent is subject to the following: 

• That the applicant obtain approval from the Township for an Official Plan
Amendment, to permit the severance of a third non-agricultural parcel of land.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to
one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file
at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• The applicant is to confirm with the Township that there is no dedication of reserves
required along the frontage of County Road 19 and County Road 17, and all/any
reserves required have been dedicated to the Township.

• That the applicant successfully complete an MDS1 analysis between the severed
dwelling and any nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters (LF/ADs) on
separate lots in accordance with the Minimum Separation Distance Document
(2016).

• The applicant shall consult with the Whitfield Navigation Facility (NAVCAN)
through the Township, prior to the re-zoning of any lands, in accordance with policy
5.34 of the Official Plan.

• That the applicant obtain approval from the Township for a Zoning By-law
Amendment, to re-zone the severed lands to the Rural Residential (RR) zone.

• That the Owner obtain approval from the Township for a Zoning By-law
Amendment, prior to the issuance of the certificate of consent, to restrict future
farm related or non-farm residential uses on the remnant (retained) agricultural lot.

• The applicant is to confirm that the retained agricultural parcel maintains a suitable
access point, and/or confirm if an entrance permit is required.

• That the farm operation severing the lot provide confirmation of operations base
elsewhere in the Township.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of
decision where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.



Page 12 of 13 
 

 
 

Yea Nay  
 
    Ken Cufaro  
 
   Earl Hawkins 
 
   Kim Lyon 
 
   Paul Mills  
 
   Bart Wysokinski 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 13 of 13 

Appendix 1: Applicant’s Sketch 



LOT 10

CON 2 WHS Agricultural

Agricultural

Agricultural

B7-2020 (636592 Cty RD 19) - OP

Legend
Parcels

Hamlet Residential

Open Space Recreation

Highway Commercial

Estate Residential Special Policy Area One

Extractive Industrial

Niagara Escarpment - Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

Business Park Transition

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Core

Natural Area

Former Waste Disposal Area (FWD)

Niagara Escarpment - Rural

Niagara Escarpment - Natural Area

Open Space

Rural

Hamlet

Estate Residential

Commercial

Candidate Recreational Lands

Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Extractive Industrial

Agricultural

Institutional

Community

Waste Disposal Industrial



LOT 10

CON 2 WHS Countryside

Countryside

Countryside

Rural Residential

Rural Residential

Rural Residential

B7-2020 (636592 Cty RD 19) - Zoning

Legend
NVCA

Parcels

Agricultural

Business Park Core Holding

Business Park Gateway Holding

Rural Commercial

Business Park Transition Holding

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Transition

Countryside

Rural

Environmental Protection

Open Space

Recreational

Hamlet Residential

Rural Residential

Estate Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Institutional

Extractive Industrial

Waste Disposal Industrial

Niagara Escarpment Commission





TOWNSI{IP OF Application for Gonsent
Under Section 53 of the Planning Act

DATE RECEIVED I + ZaLa

Roll Number: 22-16-000-00 -0000

Submission of the Application

tl One application form for each parcel to be severed.
tr Application Fees
tr Pre-consultation with NVCA, NEC or Road Authority (if required)
tr Sketch or Survey

Completeness of the Application

The information in this form must be provided by the applicant with the appropriate fee. lf the information and fee are not provided, the application will
be returned or refused for further consideration until the information and fee have been provided.

The application form also sets out other information that will assist the Township and others in their planning evaluation of the consent application. To
ensure the quickest and most complete review, this information should be submitted at the time of application. ln the absence of this information, it may
not be possible to do a complete review within the legislated time frame for making a decision. As a result, the application may be refused.

SUMMARY OF FEES

LOT CREATION/BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT: $2500
EASEMENT/OTHER: $2000
CHANGE OF CONDITIONS TO A CONSENT
DECISION:$1000
-NVCA FEE IF IN REGULATED OR NHS AREA

1. Applicant and Ownership lnformation

Telephone:

Stq-A\r$"frdct\
*"HtU" 

ffi-iq\ cL K,,n^ fr-r" it
57"? ? L il (t t ll\wLmwr

Code
MI ( {vl-

Emair 
[v [. - (rrrise hotrqcit. cr.

Contact lnformation, if different than owner (this may be a person/firm acting on behalf of the owner)

Name of Contact Telephone:

Postal CodeAddress

Email

Mortgage, Line of Credit, Charges, or other encumbrances in respect of the subject land

AddressName

Telephone/Fax EmailDC#

2. Location and Description of the Subject Land

Concession e
Lot to Registered P lan/Lot(s)/block(s)

Reference Plan No Part Numbe(s)StreeUEmergency No

<qbs?+
Street/Road--

At'* Lvr.o UtSt
Width of streeVroad Jo" l.I' F Municipal year round

maintained road
V MTO / County Road tr Seasonal / Private Road

Frontase(m) 
2o4C. b.z_ .+-/_ Entire Propertyql, ,];I &rr{,1

Affected Area (is amendment does not affect entire property)

3(r.Ql,5 ,*t\.rt)Area (hectares)Depth (m)

n-t b.17 +/-

1



3. Purpose of this Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

tr Transfer tr
tr A charge tr

Creation of a new lot
A lease

Addition to a lot
A correction of title

tr An easement
tr Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Buildinq lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc. t t , r"'=Pil;"i;; ; " 
b l' [; " 

;i";l-'',-{J " lu re ch rst."{q
Namqof person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

(1o.t fct n. 5 Lhrot{'.tr \
4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing Information

Frontage(m) 2r3V,b Z- Severed
20)u.bz lt-l-e.1

Retained
2u Zr- .b Z-

Depth (m) 
L7 I b. Q I uo6'.4B tt 0* , +4;

Area (m)

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired n8L
Existins Use 

{*E-4
Prooosed Usetr*zq

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Conskuction /

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
structures)

Front Rear Side Side

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
n Proposed

n Existing
tr Proposed

D Existing
n Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
tr Private Well
tr Communal Well
tr Municipal Water
U Other:

Sewage
tr

Disposal
Private Septic
Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
tl Sewer
tr Ditches
tr Swales
tr Other:

Tile Drainage
trNo
tr Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

2



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformation

Current Zoning

ftarueutru<6
Current Official Plan

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Minister's Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act?

File #: Status

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

-f/+4€ t9 nJ o Ct+a-iaa o tr tJ4E Stnn P--Y ,L
ADTIST 7-o F*k-tS T/J e Sd-Za-Fc-e- (>o;aL)

/-o r- /*, J t-
7a -fsnsV

Sprrt1) a A-t') 'c

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specified? Please check the
aporopriate boxes. if anv applv.

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject
Land, unless othenivise specific
(indicate approximate distance)

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities s(- y'=s
A Landfill

sl'o M,
A provincially significant wetland (Class 1,2 or 3 wetland)

No n/"
A locally significant wetland ,t/ a rJo
Flood Plain

rJo xJ u
A rehabilitated mine site

^I,
No

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land

rt/, t'/ o
An active mine site

{, il,
An industrial or commercial use (specify uses)

AJo tJo ./
Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf ves. attach a servicino ootions reoort and hvdro oeolooical reDort

tr Yes y'*o

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan? tr Yes q,/*o

Please provide plan number and date approved by OMAFRA

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? tr Yes 6o
lf ves, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.caldeoartments/planninq

a
J



7. Consistency wlth Policy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
,*(tl Yes

Create a new settlement area? U Yes

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tl Yes

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply?

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate

U Yes

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy
issued under subsection 3(1 ) of the Planning Act:

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

V/"""

Signature

trNo

A,a A e //*atno

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? a/6tr Yes

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? aJ6tl Yes

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the

be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of
consistency.

{"""

Signature

trNo
Plan and Growth Plan

Name of individual having knowledge statements. A report may

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application

,/*otr Yes tl Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

uJ /*
Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use

5 *,e-4.-t .*,/e1q rJ e-a -7-o -So ^J 2, o o L,
rl2 +L€E )at/e<nP Lo 7-e 4ez-+rr t/E -

/r." trNo

4



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes n1 rrto

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv, etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following:

tr The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
tr The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
tr The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
D The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
tr The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

tr The existing uses on adjacent lands
tr The location, width and name of any roads wiihin or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
tr The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

Fq
A\
o
N
hr
\^

$,
F
A

N
q

T
!c
*
s)
a

V

.t
FI
e

Da+
m
<)

I
N
\
K--

\'-l
v

.e(4,1-

rhn^€

.2ks-o /-r1g

a\
\s
q
-(

N
D

\

1 Sovb ' b?-

5



AUTHORIZATION. DEC LARATIONS AN D AC KNOWLEDGEMENTS

ku lg, "l (uAft €o'f t S , am the owner of the tands subject to this application hereby agree to the following:t,

OWNERS AUTHORIZATION

t-
staff or their representatives are authorized to enter my property for the purposes of evaluating this application.

2. I acknowledge and agree to pay all costs associated with the processing and evaluation of this application, including any peer reviews

and consulting fees. These costs may be deducted from the deposit or invoiced directly, at the discretion of the Township. Should this

application be appealed to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal, I am aware that I will be responsible and agree to pay all fees related to

the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal process.

3. For the purposes of the Freedom of lnformation and Protection of Privacy Act, I authorize and consent to the use by or the disclosure to

any person or public body of any personal information that is collected under the authority of the Planning Act for the purposes of

processing this application, and further I authorize my agent for this application to provide any of my personal inflation that will be included

in this application or collected during the processing of this application,

4. I authorized make this application of my behalf

Date nature of

Signature

SWORN DECLARATION OF APPLICANT

lI*,n,0

ch>e'rcs rrClRnr- orthe c;lrtu 4 -EnfitD
in the

make oath and say (or solemnly declare) that the intor.rJio*ontained in this application is true and that the information

contained in the documents that accompany this application is true,

Sworn (or declared) before me at
',',n,QoU 

rnco- eF Ortr)r I 6
202C)this

q"
day of

Commissioner of Oaths

JESSICA LEE DAVIDSON
Banilter, SoUcftor, tlotary Public
and a Commleeloner br Oaths

ln and lor Onlatb.

Applicant

(U_<=-
Applicant

6





CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 

758070 2ND LINE  EAST 

MULMUR, ONTARIO 

L9V 0G8 

NOTICE OF A COMPLETE APPLICATION AND A PUBLIC MEETING 

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended. 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars: 

MEETING DATE AND TIME: January 6, 2021 at 1:00pm

APPLICATION NUMBER: B8-2020 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Kyle Ferris and Ryan Ferris 

LOCATION:  596577 2nd LINE WEST & 586184 COUNTY ROAD 17. 

PURPOSE:   BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT/LOT ADDITON TO SETTLE AN ESTATE. 

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority 
of members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device) and with either digital 
audio or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the 
digital address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID 
when prompted.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097 Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097


Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours. 

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written 
submissions to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to 
give a provisional consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If 
you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in 
respect of the proposed consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment.

See Map on next page.  For illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey.

A digital version is available by email. 

mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca


Figure 1: Subject Lands – Existing Conditions 

Figure 2: Proposed Boundary Adjustment / Lot Addition 



Figure 3: Applicant’s Sketch 

Dated December 17, 2020



Page 1 of 9 

TO:  

FROM: 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT:  

PLANNING REPORT 

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 

James Hunter Senior Planner BURPL

January 6, 2021 

B8-2020 Ferris Consent Application – Boundary Adjustment 

PURPOSE 

The applicant is seeking a Consent to execute a boundary adjustment, in order to settle an 
estate. 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONFIGURATIONS 

The existing lot configuration and conditions are illustrated on Figure 1. The proposed 
boundary adjustment / lot addition is reflected on Figure 2.  

FILE NO B8-2020 

ROLL NO 221600000321300 
221600000321370 

OWNER Kyle Ferris 

Ryan Ferris 

LOCATION / LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

596577 2ND LINE WEST. 
CON 2 WHS W PT LOT 10. 

586184 COUNTY ROAD 17. 
CON 2 WHS W PT LOT 10 RP;7R5541 
PART 2 RP 7R5377 PART;2. 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Agricultural 

ZONING: Countryside Area (A) 

NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 

NVCA Regulated: Yes (beyond regulated area) 

Application Submission Date: November 17, 2020 

Public Meeting Date: Wednesday January 6, 2021 



Page 2 of 9 
 

Figure 1: Existing Lot Configuration 

 
 

Figure 2: Proposed Boundary Adjustment 

 



Page 3 of 9 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Two properties are subject to the application, located at 596577 2nd Line West and 
586184 County Road 17 in the Township of Mulmur. 
 
596577 2nd Line West currently contains a lot area of approximately 91.22 acres (36.9 
hectares) and is currently used for agricultural land uses. 586184 County Road 17 
currently contains a lot area of approximately 5.91 acres (2.4 hectares) and is currently 
used for a rural residential land use. Each property contains an existing residential 
dwelling and access to the lands.  
 
In 2006, the 596577 2nd Line West parcel was subject to a Consent application, which 
created the existing 586184 County Road 17 parcel of land. The property owners are now 
applying to adjust the lot lines of the approved 2006 Consent to settle an estate and 
increase the lot size of the 586184 County Road 17 property.  
 
596577 2nd Line West will be adjusted to contain land holdings of approximately 49 acres 
(19.8 hectares). This is reflected on Figure 2 in red.  
 
586184 County Road 17 will be adjusted to contain land holdings of approximately 48.9 
acres (19.8 hectares), with a lot addition of approximately 43 acres (17.4 hectares). This is 
reflected on Figure 2 in blue. 
 
 
PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 
 
Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
 
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial 
interest related to land use planning and development. The PPS encourages the 
protection of agricultural areas for long term use, with protection stressed on prime 
agricultural lands (2.3).  
 
Permitted uses are limited to agricultural uses, agriculture-related uses, and on-farm 
diversified uses (2.3.3).  
 
In prime agricultural areas, all types, sizes and intensities of agricultural uses and normal 
farm practices are promoted and protected (2.3.3.2).  
 
Lot adjustments in prime agricultural areas may be permitted for legal or technical reasons 
(2.3.4.2). The application seeks to add land to an adjacent lot, considered a technical 
consent. No new lots would be created by the application. 
 
As the PPS encourages the retention of agricultural lands and there is no anticipated 
impact on farming operations, the proposed boundary adjustment is consistent with the 
PPS.  
 



Page 4 of 9 
 

 
Growth Plan (August 2020) 
 
The Growth Plan builds on the PPS together with other Provincial Plans to inform 
decision-making regarding growth management and environmental protection particular to 
the GGH. The Growth Plan provides high-level policy direction relating to the development 
of healthy, safe, and balanced communities.  
 
The guiding principles of the Plan aim to support and enhance the long-term viability and 
productivity of agriculture by protecting prime agricultural areas. An Agricultural System is 
mapped by the Province, which identifies the subject lands as prime agricultural lands, 
with Class 1-3 soils (4.2.6).  
 
The retention of existing lots of record for agricultural uses is encouraged and the use of 
these lots for non-agricultural uses is discouraged (4.2.6.5). The application would not 
impact the agricultural system, as the consent would retain the agricultural lands.  
 
The application conforms to the policies and intent of the Growth Plan. 
 
 
Niagara Escarpment Plan (2017) 
 
The purpose of the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) is to provide for the maintenance and 
protection of the plan’s areas, and to ensure that development is compatible with the 
natural environment.  
 
The subject lands are located outside of the plans area. The NEP does not apply.  
 
 
Strategic Plan 
 
The application does not offend the Strategic Plan and would maintain the rural character 
of the area.  
 
 
Official Plan 
 
The lands subject to the application are designated by the Township’s Official Plan as 
‘Agricultural’ on Schedule A1, illustrated on Figure 3.  
 
The lands contain a ‘Moderate Slope (15-20%)’ according to Schedule B3.  
 
Lands that are designated as Agricultural are considered prime agricultural areas, 
protected for long-term use for agriculture. Permitted uses under the designation includes 
agricultural and related uses, secondary uses, and a single detached dwelling (5.9/6.1).  
 
In prime agricultural areas, all types, sizes and intensities of agricultural uses and normal farm 
practices shall be promoted and protected, in accordance with provincial standards.  
 



Page 5 of 9 

Existing agricultural parcels should not be subdivided into smaller parcels of land, where 
the severance would reduce the long-term flexibility and viability of the existing farm unit. 
Consents in prime agricultural areas may be permitted for legal or technical reasons, 
including boundary adjustments / lot additions (5.9/6.1.7). The subject boundary 
adjustment does not propose to remove any lands from agricultural operations and does 
not propose to create any new lots.   

Figure 3: Land Use Designation 

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are zoned ‘Countryside Area (A)’ by Schedule A, illustrated on Figure 4. 

Permitted uses includes single detached dwellings, agricultural uses, and agricultural-
related uses. 

Under section 4.1.2 of the Zoning By-law, lots within the Countryside Area (A) zone 
require a minimum lot frontage of 100 meters and a minimum lot area of 2.0 hectares 
(4.94 acres). 

The proposed lots would meet the requirements of the Zoning By-law. 



Page 6 of 9 

Figure 4: Zoning 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The costs of processing with the application are borne by the applicants. 

AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Public and agency comments are being provided as separate correspondence to this 
report.  



Page 7 of 9 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The subject Consent application for a boundary adjustment / lot addition is consistent with 
Provincial Policy and does not conflict with Provincial Plans. The application further 
conforms to the Township’s Official Plan and Zoning By-law.   

Subject to agency and public comments, it is recommended that this application be 
approved with the conditions attached being fulfilled. 

Respectfully submitted, 

______________________________
Senior Planner, BURPl.  



Page 8 of 9 

DRAFT DECISION 

Date:  January 6, 2021 

Moved by:  ________________________  

Seconded by: _________________________ 

That Application No. B8-2020, submitted by Kyle Ferris and Ryan Ferris for Consent 
(Boundary Adjustment / Lot Addition) be approved, subject to the following: 

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to
one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file
at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• The applicant is to confirm with the Township that there is no dedication of reserves
required along the frontage of County Road 17, and all/any reserves required have
been dedicated to the Township.

• That all conditions be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision
where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.

Yea Nay 

  Ken Cufaro  

  Earl Hawkins 

  Kim Lyon 

  Paul Mills  

  Bart Wysokinski 



Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

Appendix 1: Applicant’s Sketch 
 

 



LOT 9

LOT 10

HS

CON 2 WH

CON 2 WHS

Agricultural

Agricultural

Agricultural

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

B8-2020 (596577 2nd line E) - OP

Legend
Parcels

Hamlet Residential

Open Space Recreation

Highway Commercial

Estate Residential Special Policy Area One

Extractive Industrial

Niagara Escarpment - Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

Business Park Transition

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Core

Natural Area

Former Waste Disposal Area (FWD)

Niagara Escarpment - Rural

Niagara Escarpment - Natural Area

Open Space

Rural

Hamlet

Estate Residential

Commercial

Candidate Recreational Lands

Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Extractive Industrial

Agricultural

Institutional

Community

Waste Disposal Industrial



LOT 9

LOT 10

HS

CON 2 WH

CON 2 WHS

Countryside

Countryside

Countryside

Niagara Escarpment Commission
Rural Residential

Rural Residential

B8-2020 (596577 2nd line E) - Zoning

Legend
NVCA

Parcels

Agricultural

Business Park Core Holding

Business Park Gateway Holding

Rural Commercial

Business Park Transition Holding

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Transition

Countryside

Rural

Environmental Protection

Open Space

Recreational

Hamlet Residential

Rural Residential

Estate Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Institutional

Extractive Industrial

Waste Disposal Industrial

Niagara Escarpment Commission



SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT : 

DRAWING NO. : 

PROJECT NO. : 

PRACTICE BCDN:
2773

LICENCE BCDN:
4188

ISSUE NO. :ISSUE NO. / DATE : 

THE DRAWINGS ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.
UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE DRAWINGS IS PROHIBITED.
REPORT ANY DISCOVERY OF ERROR OR DISCREPANCY

TO THE ARCHITECT.  ALL MEASUREMENTS MUST BE
CHECKED ON SITE BY THE CONTRACTOR.  USE ONLY THE
LATEST REVISED DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.

SEVERANCE
APPLICATION

18.473

19.06.19

LH / AM

6
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

18.07.15
18.08.30
18.09.06
19.02.12
19.05.24
19.06.19

SITE PLAN
SEVERANCE APPLICATION
PUBLIC WORKS COMMENTS
SEVERANCE REVISIONS
SEVERANCE PROPOSAL REV.
SEVERANCE AREA REVISION

LLOYD  HUNT
architect

705 466 3111
lloyd@lloydhuntarchitect.com
21 Station Street, Glen Huron
Ontario,  L0M 1L0,  Canada

877 217 5TH LINE

MULMUR  E.H.S.

LICENCE

LLOYD HUNT

4188

ARCHITECTS

OF

O

N

T

A

R

O

I

A

SSO

C

I

A

T

I

O

N

J

U

N

E

 

1

9

,

 

2

0

1

9

SITE PLAN

SP-01

1:3000

INFORMATION FOR SITE PLAN

FROM SURVEY PREPARED BY

MARTIN KNISLEY, O.L.S.

DATED: JUNE 15, 2010

N 72° 22' 35" E N 72° 53' 35" E N 72° 02' 00" E N 72° 30' 50" E N 72° 39' 30" E

N
 0

9°
 4

9'
 1

0"
 W

N
 0

9°
 5

0'
 5

0"
 W

N
 1

1°
 1

1'
 4

0"
 W

N
 0

9°
 0

1'
 1

0"
 W

N
 1

0°
 3

9'
 5

0"
 W

N 72° 14' 05" EN 72° 07' 25" E

N 72° 16' 20" E

N 68° 02' 40" E

N 68° 07' 45" E

N 70° 00' 00" E

N 64° 56' 15" E
126.97 m

7
3
.
7
7
 
m

N
2
0
°
5
4
'
4
5
"
W

N 69° 18' 25" E 138.81 m

7
3
.
1
9
 
m

N

1
1
°
4
7
'
3
0
"
W

N 69° 18' 25" E
59.39 m

0 125100755025

N
 1

0°
 0

8'
 3

0"
 W

   
10

0.
00

  m

R

O

A

D

 
A

L
L
O

W

A

N

C

E

 
B

E

T

W

E

E

N

C

O

N

C

E

S

S

I
O

N

S

 
5
 
&

 
6
 
 
 
E

.
H

.
S

.

HP

N 71° 27' 50" E
13.08 m

PART 1
0.730 ha

PART 2
15.997 ha

PART 3
0.552 haPART 7

0.912 ha

183.44 m 103.67 m 108.94 m 133.73 m 80.0 m

92
.8

0 
m

59
.5

7 
m

10
5.

39
 m

285.57 m

150.47 m
PART 4

1.386 ha

N 10° 01' 00" W
27.21 m

N 09° 01' 10" W
21.53 m

N 10° 10' 00" W
11.70 m

192.21 m

N 10° 08' 30" W
65.20 m

N 10° 10' 00" W
238.28 m

22
6.

13
 m

N
 1

0°
 1

0'
 0

0"
 W

N 10° 08' 30" W
5.08 m

429.65 m

88
.8

8 
m

21
6.

81
 m

175.01 m 174.99 m

PART 8
SEVERED LOT

1.01 ha

N 11° 47' 30" W
16.42 m

PART 5
0.199 ha

N 72° 16' 20" E 193.78 m

N 72° 16' 20" E   100.00 m

N
 1

0°
 0

8'
 3

0"
 W

   
 1

00
.0

0 
m

TRANSFORMER

HYDRO POLE

PRIMARY
HYDRO LINE
685.1 m

EXISTING FIELD ACCESS
TO REMAIN

NO WINTER
MAINTENANCE

PART 6
RETAINED LOT

OLD: 18.881 ha
NEW: 17.871 ha

N 72° 23' 20" E
133.69 m

N
 1

0°
 0

8'
 3

0"
 W

10
1.

58
 m

NVCA
AREA

PROPOSED
BUILDING
FOOTPRINT
21m x 14m
(3175  SQ.FT)

N 72° 16' 20" E   100.00 m

PROPOSED
SEPTIC

PROPOSED
SEVERED LOT
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
320.06



SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT : 

DRAWING NO. : 

PROJECT NO. : 

PRACTICE BCDN:
2773

LICENCE BCDN:
4188

ISSUE NO. :ISSUE NO. / DATE : 

THE DRAWINGS ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.
UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE DRAWINGS IS PROHIBITED.
REPORT ANY DISCOVERY OF ERROR OR DISCREPANCY

TO THE ARCHITECT.  ALL MEASUREMENTS MUST BE
CHECKED ON SITE BY THE CONTRACTOR.  USE ONLY THE
LATEST REVISED DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.

SEVERANCE
APPLICATION

18.473

19.06.19

LH / AM

6
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

18.07.15
18.08.30
18.09.06
19.02.12
19.05.24
19.06.19

SITE PLAN
SEVERANCE APPLICATION
PUBLIC WORKS COMMENTS
SEVERANCE REVISIONS
SEVERANCE PROPOSAL REV.
SEVERANCE AREA REVISION

LLOYD  HUNT
architect

705 466 3111
lloyd@lloydhuntarchitect.com
21 Station Street, Glen Huron
Ontario,  L0M 1L0,  Canada

877 217 5TH LINE

MULMUR  E.H.S.

DETAILED SITE PLAN

SP-02

1:1500

INFORMATION FOR SITE PLAN

FROM SURVEY PREPARED BY

MARTIN KNISLEY, O.L.S.

DATED: JUNE 15, 2010

0 5040302010

N
 1

0°
 0

8'
 3

0"
 W

   
10

0.
00

  m
HP

N 72° 16' 20" E   100.00 m

N
 1

0°
 0

8'
 3

0"
 W

   
 1

00
.0

0 
m

EXISTING FIELD ACCESS
TO REMAIN

PART 8
SEVERED LOT

1.01 ha

PART 6
RETAINED LOT

OLD: 18.881 ha
NEW: 17.871 ha

N 72° 16' 20" E   100.00 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
320.06



Owner
Polygonal Line



Owner
Polygonal Line







 

                   CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
758070 2ND LINE  EAST 

MULMUR, ONTARIO 
L9V 0G8 

NOTICE OF A COMPLETE APPLICATION AND A PUBLIC MEETING   

 

REVISED APPLICATION 

 

 

APPLICATION NUMBER: B07/ 2018 

OWNER/APPLICANT: MOCKINGBIRD WOODS LTD. 

(LLOYD HUNT)  

LOCATION: CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 

 

PURPOSE OF APPLICATION:  

 

SUBJECT LANDS ARE APPROX 19 HA.  

PROPOSED LOT IS APPROX 1 HA. WITH 

APPROX 100M FRONTAGE AND DEPTH TO 

BE LOCATED IN SOUTH-WESTERN 

CORNER. 

  

  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2021 AT 1:00 P.M.  

  



 
 
Additional information is available for public inspection on our website or by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey Atkinson, 705 466 
3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours. 
 
NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of 
Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions to the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses  to give a provisional consent, the Local Planning Appeal 
Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of Mulmur in respect 
of the proposed consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur. 

 

For illustration purposes only.   This is not a plan of survey 

 

  
 



1

Tracey Atkinson

From: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca>
Sent: October 11, 2019 1:22 PM
To: 'Lloyd Hunt'
Cc: Tracey Atkinson
Subject: Dietrich Severance 877217 5th Line Mulmur

Importance: High

Good Afternoon Lloyd, 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed your severance proposal 
in accordance Natural Heritage and Natural Hazard policies established under the Provincial 
Policy Statement 2014 (PPS) and our Planning and Regulation Guidelines established under the 
Conservation Authorities Act. Based upon our mandate and policies, the NVCA offer the 
following comments for consideration. 

Ontario Regulation 172/06 

We advise that a portion of the property is regulated by the NVCA due to the Pine River and 
associated slope and meander hazard areas. 

I appears that there is sufficient area for a developable envelope and to provide safe access 
provided that the driveway (when installed) is situated at the south 1/2 of the proposed 
lot.  The proposed severed lot would be affected by Ontario Regulation 172/06 under the 
Conservation Authorities Act where a permit or clearance from NVCA would be required prior 
to any future development. Our Permits and Regulations staff may request an assessment of 
any impacts of proposed development and mitigation measures associated with the slope 
hazards.  However, this is an item that would be completed at the permit stage. 

Natural Hazard - Regulatory Comments 

Policies contained within the PPS restrict development (including lot creation) to areas outside 
of hazardous lands adjacent to river, stream and small inland lake systems which are impacted 
by flooding hazards and/or erosion hazards.   

Natural Heritage - Advisory Comments 

There are no Natural Heritage concerns with the proposed consent. 

Conclusions 

On these grounds, NVCA could support an application for consent to sever on the subject 
property. 

These comments should be considered preliminary in nature.  We will require additional 
information (full application submission) in order to complete our review and additional 
comments may be provided in the future.   NVCA staff appreciates the opportunity to comment 
at this stage in the process.  Should you require any further information, please feel free to 
contact the undersigned. 

Amy Knapp│Planner II 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority

8195 8
th
 Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 

T 705-424-1479 ext.233│F 705-424-2115



2

aknapp@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca 

 
This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential 
and privileged information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the original message. 
 

From: Emma Perry  
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2019 12:59 PM 
To: 'Lloyd Hunt' <lloyd@lloydhuntarchitect.com> 
Cc: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 
Subject: FW: Dietrich Severance 877217 5th Line Mulmur 
 
Hi Lloyd, 
I looked into it further and determined that Amy Knapp was assigned to this review as she is the planner for 
Mulmur. I’ve cc’d her here to provide an update on her comments. 
Best, 
Emma 
 
Emma Perry│Planner II 
 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
8195 8

th
 Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 

T 705-424-1479 ext.244│F 705-424-2115 
eperry@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca 

 
This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential 
and privileged information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the original message. 
 
 
 
From: Lloyd Hunt [mailto:lloyd@lloydhuntarchitect.com]  
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2019 11:44 AM 
To: Emma Perry <eperry@nvca.on.ca> 
Subject: Dietrich Severance 877217 5th Line Mulmur 
 
Hello Emma,  
 
Attached are the pdf's of the severance that we have requested comment.  
 
Regards, 
Lloyd  
 
 
 
--  
lloyd@lloydhuntarchitect.com   
705-466-3111 



Page 1 of 6 
 

 
PLANNING REPORT 

 
TO:    COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
FROM:   Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:   B07-2018 – Mockingbird Woods (Lloyd Hunt) 

 
 
 

 
PURPOSE 
The subject application for consent is to create a residential building lot as characterized in 
the following charts and maps. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FILE NO B07-2018 
ROLL NO 22160000124420 

OWNER MOCKINGBIRD WOODS LIMITED 

ADDRESS 5th LINE  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: MULMUR CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 RP 

7R5919 PART 6 
OFFICIAL PLAN:   Rural, Environmental Protection 

(not within the GGH Ag Land Base) 
ZONING: Countryside Area (A),  Environmental 

Protection (EPN) 
NEC/Greenbelt: n/a 
NVCA Regulated: Yes 

Application Submission Date: August 31, 2018 
Deemed Complete: September 12, 2018 

Public Meeting Date: September 27, 2018 
January 6, 2021 



Page 2 of 6 
 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 
Frontage (approximate) 305m 
Area (approximate) 18.9ha 
Use Agricultural 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 
 B07-2018 Severed RETAINED  
Frontage (approx.) 100m Approx. 250m 
Depth (approx.) 100m 624m 
Area (approx.) 1.0 ha Approx. 17.8 ha 
Use Building lot Building Lot/Agricultural 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject lands were created by consent under application B15/2004, being the creation 
of the approximate 20ha parcel in the Rural designation and proposed as the 2nd 
severance from an original 100 acre parcel.  The current application would be the 3rd 
severance.  
 
This application was circulated and reviewed in 2018.  At the time of the original 
submission the Township had concerns as the lot was on a year round maintained road.  
Since that time, trees have been planted on the lands to the west.  In addition, the 
Township has made arrangements for increased capacity for snow removal, including 
purchasing a tractor and snow blower.  
 
PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 
 
Please see 2018 report.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 



Page 4 of 6 
 

The costs of processing the application are borne by the applicants. 
 
AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
 
Public Works have reviewed the entrances and provided comments, which are 
incorporated into the draft decision.   
 
No comments have been received to date from the NVCA on the revised application.   
 
 
CONCLUSIONS: 
 
The revised submission addresses the previous concerns regarding the lot configuration.  
The planting of trees and increased snow maintenance capacity address the un-
maintained road concerns.  
 
It is recommended that this application be considered for approval, subject to the 
conditions noted in the draft decision.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP  



Page 5 of 6 

APPENDIX 1 

AERIAL PHOTO 2018 

OFFICIAL PLAN 



Page 6 of 6 
 

ZONING 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
PLANNING REPORT 

 
TO:    COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
FROM:   Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2018 

SUBJECT:   B07-2018 – Mockingbird Woods (Lloyd Hunt) 

   ADDENDUM REPORT 
 

 
 

 
PURPOSE 
To provide corrected information regarding County conformity.  
 
County of Dufferin Official Plan 

Schedule E (Natural Heritage Features) of the County Official Plan identifies part of the site as 
Woodlands and Watercourses. Per Policy 5.3.4, development and site alteration will not be 
permitted within or adjacent to significant woodlands unless it has been demonstrated that there 
will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through the 
preparation of an EIS. Per Policy 5.3.11, the County, in consultation with the applicable 
Conservation Authority must be satisfied with an EIS prior to the granting of development 
approvals.  

Growth Plan (2017) 
The 2017 Growth Plan (GP) provides high-level policy direction relating to the 
development of healthy, safe and balanced communities. The GP directs the majority of 

FILE NO B07-2018 
ROLL NO 22160000124420 

OWNER MOCKINGBIRD WOODS LIMITED 

ADDRESS 5th LINE  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: MULMUR CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 RP 

7R5919 PART 6 
OFFICIAL PLAN:   Rural, Environmental Protection 

(not within the GGH Ag Land Base) 
ZONING: Countryside Area (A),  Environmental 

Protection (EPN) 
NEC/Greenbelt: n/a 
NVCA Regulated: Yes 

Application Submission Date: August 31, 2018 
Deemed Complete: September 12, 2018 

Public Meeting Date: September 27, 2018 



Page 2 of 2 
 

residential development to settlement areas, but does allow for limited development in the 
rural area.  
 
The subject lands are not part of the Agricultural Land base as defined by OMAFRA.  
 
Section 4.2.2 of the GP requires municipalities to incorporate the Natural Heritage System 
(NHS) as an overlay in the next update, which may be refined through the County 
Municipal Comprehensive Review (MCR).  The County has commenced the MCR 
process, but the NHS refinement work has not been initiated and therefore is not 
incorporated in local nor County Official Plans.  
 
In accordance with section 4.2.2,3(a), new development (which includes lot development) 
is not permitted unless it can demonstrate no negative impact on key natural heritage 
features or key hydrological features and fulfill the requirements of the subjection.  
 
The subject lands are identified as having a natural heritage area (light green on the 
excerpt below), specifically a woodlot features and a wetland in proximity.  An assessment 
would be necessary to determine if the features are “key” and demonstrate impacts.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the application be deferred to allow for possible reconfiguration to 
address the GP policies. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP  
 
 



Page 1 of 8 
 

 
PLANNING REPORT 

 
TO:    COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
FROM:   Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2018 

SUBJECT:   B07-2018 – Mockingbird Woods (Lloyd Hunt) 

 
 
 

 
PURPOSE 
The subject application for consent is to create a residential building lot as characterized in 
the following charts and maps. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FILE NO B07-2018 
ROLL NO 22160000124420 

OWNER MOCKINGBIRD WOODS LIMITED 

ADDRESS 5th LINE  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: MULMUR CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 RP 

7R5919 PART 6 
OFFICIAL PLAN:   Rural, Environmental Protection 

(not within the GGH Ag Land Base) 
ZONING: Countryside Area (A),  Environmental 

Protection (EPN) 
NEC/Greenbelt: n/a 
NVCA Regulated: Yes 

Application Submission Date: August 31, 2018 
Deemed Complete: September 12, 2018 

Public Meeting Date: September 27, 2018 



Page 2 of 8 
 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 
Frontage (approximate) 305m 
Area (approximate) 18.9ha 
Use Agricultural 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 
 B07-2018 Severed RETAINED  
Frontage (approx.) 215m 89m 
Depth (approx.) 94m 624m 
Area (approx.) 2ha Approx. 16.9 ha 
Use Building lot Building Lot/Agricultural 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject lands were created by consent under application B15/2004, being the creation 
of the approximate 20ha parcel in the Rural designation and proposed as the 2nd 
severance from an original 100 acre parcel.  The current application would be the 3rd 
severance.  
 
PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 
 
Provincial Policy Statement (2014) 
The 2014 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction on development. The PPS provides policies for rural area and allows for limited 
residential development.  The application is consistent with the PPS.   
 
Growth Plan (2017) 
The 2017 Growth Plan (GP) provides high-level policy direction relating to the 
development of healthy, safe and balanced communities. The GP directs the majority of 
residential development to settlement areas but does allow for limited development in the 
rural area. The application conforms to or does not conflict with the GP. 
 
The subject lands are not part of the Agricultural Land base as defined by OMAFRA.  
 
Niagara Escarpment Plan (2017) 
n/a 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 8 

Strategic Plan 
The application does not offend the Strategic Plan. Responsible growth includes creating 
lots that front onto already maintained roads and do not increase infrastructure, 
maintenance and servicing costs. Additional information provided related to frontage on a 
maintained road and Public Work comments.  

Official Plan 
The Official Plan (OP) contains policy direction relating to development in the Rural 
designation.  It provides for a range of uses, including single detached dwellings, 
agriculture and accessory uses.  

The OP allows consideration of up to three severances from an original 40 ha parcel.  The 
proposed consent would be considered the third and last severance that could be 
considered within the original 40 ha parcel.  

An excerpt from policy 6.2.5 is included below.  It is noted that the maximum of three 
severances is only to be considered in appropriate circumstances.  

Severances involving the creation of one and, in appropriate circumstances, two or a maximum of 
three new lots from the original 40 ha. Township half-lot, may be considered by the Committee of 
Adjustment where it can be shown that there will be no adverse effects on nearby farming 
operations, where impacts on the resources and natural features identifies on the schedules to this 
Plan are minimal and acceptable, and where the rural character of the area will be maintained. 

Rural character is defined and protected in the OP. The proposed lot would result in a 
staggering of development and variety of lot sizes and dimensions, which is consistent 
with the rural character policy.   

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are zoned Countryside Area (A). The A zone permits a range of uses, 
including a single detached dwelling and accessory uses.  It is noted that the proposed 
retained lot with an area over 8ha may be eligible for a second dwelling unit. Any second 
dwelling unit would be subject to a site plan agreement to address siting, buffering, 
servicing and access, and generally would not be permitted on an individual or second 
driveway.  

Through section 3.9.2, Frontage on Improved Public Road, the zoning by-law requires 
frontage on an improved public road, which is defined to include “normal year-round 
vehicle access”.  The length of frontage is determined by the zone-specific minimum 
frontage requirements in addition to the Road Entrance policy and setback requirements 
therein.   

The minimum lot frontage for a Countryside (A) lot shall be 100m as per section 4.1.2 of 
the Zoning By-law.  The proposed lot meets the minimum lot frontage and area, and could 
be maintained in the Countryside (A) zone or rezoned to the Rural Residential (RR) zone 
to provide for smaller setback requires and a more appropriate range of uses for the 
smaller sized lot.   



Page 5 of 8 
 

The retained lands, unless merged with the lots owned in similar ownership would not 
meet the Countryside (A) zone requirements.  It could be considered for site specific 
zoning as a condition of the consent, should this approach be supportable. 
 
The division of the frontage is not desirable and limits the flexibility of the retained lands.  
In addition, it may impact on the maintenance, drainage and compatibility with the 
proposed Rural Residential lots.      
 
No Minimum Distance Separation calculations were prepared in relation to this application.  
The subject lands and lands in vicinity are capable of and used for a range of crops. To 
the best of our knowledge and information provided, no livestock facilities are near the 
subject lands.  It is noted that the best lands (for cultivation) appear to be at the center and 
rear of the subject lands, and appear to be worked in connection with the farm directly 
north of the subject lands.  As such, the creation of a lot and building envelop in the front 
third of the property is preferred.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The costs of processing the application are borne by the applicants. 
 
AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
 
Public Works have reviewed the entrances and provided comments.  It is noted that the 
5th Line is not year-round maintained in front of the majority of the subject lands, but does 
currently include access to the most northerly portion of the subject lands.  It is also noted 
that improvements are recommended to improve the ability to turn around snow plows in 
this area.  Additional comments are provided by Public Works. 
 
No comments have been received to date from the NVCA.  Comments are anticipated due 
to the presence of regulated lands in proximity of the proposed entrances..  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 8 
 

 
CONCLUSIONS: 
 
The Committee of Adjustment must be satisfied that the proposed lot is good planning.  
While the Official Plan provides policies to allow for its consideration, the lot configuration 
is not ideal in that it splits the frontage and leaves a narrow strip of land for access only. 
 
Regardless of the Committee’s direction, it is recommended that a building envelope 
agreement be registered on title to address future building envelops and access thereto.  
 
It is recommended that this application be amended to either: 
 

1) Require the subject retained lands be merged with the lands directly north of the 
subject lands; or 

2) A condition be added to facilitate opening the 5th Line as a year-round maintained 
road, including requiring that the owner secure an easement on lands described as 
Part of the east half of Lot 13, Conc 5 EHS to allow for a living tree fence to prevent 
snow drifting which currently prevents year-round maintenance.     
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP  



Page 7 of 8 

APPENDIX 1 

AERIAL PHOTO 2018 

OFFICIAL PLAN 



Page 8 of 8 

ZONING 



MOCKINGBIRD DRAFT DECISION 
 
That Application No. B07/2018, submitted by Lloyd Hunt, for a lot 
creation of 1.0 hectare, from lands owned by Mockingbird Woods Ltd. 
from CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 RP 7R5919 PART 6 (Roll 1 24420), be 
approved, subject to the following: 
 

 This consent applies to a lot creation of approximately1 ha, having 
a minimum frontage of 100m and a depth of approximately 100m 
from CON 6 EHS PT LOT 14 RP 7R5919 PART 6. 

 Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the 
current fiscal year on all related properties, if the amount is known. 

 The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the 
Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after the date of decision; a 
copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township 
solicitor’s office. 

 Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital 
copy be provided, including documentation from the surveyor 
certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that 
was used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be 
of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy shall be 
circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.  

 Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, 
site plan and property standards. 

 That a road widening be required along the severed and retained if 
a widening has not been previously taken, to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Public Works.  
 

 



B7-2018 (877217 5th Line) - Zoning

Legend
Parcels

Hamlet Residential

Open Space Recreation

Highway Commercial

Estate Residential Special Policy Area One

Extractive Industrial

Niagara Escarpment - Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

Business Park Transition

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Core

Natural Area

Former Waste Disposal Area (FWD)

Niagara Escarpment - Rural

Niagara Escarpment - Natural Area

Open Space

Rural

Hamlet

Estate Residential

Commercial

Candidate Recreational Lands

Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Extractive Industrial

Agricultural

Institutional

Community

Waste Disposal Industrial



B7-2018 (877217 5th Line) - Zoning

Legend
NVCA

Parcels

Agricultural

Business Park Core Holding

Business Park Gateway Holding

Rural Commercial

Business Park Transition Holding

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Transition

Countryside

Rural

Environmental Protection

Open Space

Recreational

Hamlet Residential

Rural Residential

Estate Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Institutional

Extractive Industrial

Waste Disposal Industrial

Niagara Escarpment Commission



1 

Application for Consent 
Under Section 53 of the Planning Act 

DATE RECEIVED _______________________________ 

Roll Number: 22-16-000-001___-24200__________-0000

Submission of the Application 

 One application form for each parcel to be severed.
 Application Fees
 Pre-consultation with NVCA, NEC or Road Authority (if

required)
 Sketch or Survey

Completeness of the Application 

The information in this form must be provided by the applicant with the appropriate fee.  If the information and fee are not provided, the application will 
be returned or refused for further consideration until the information and fee have been provided. 

The application form also sets out other information that will assist the Township and others in their planning evaluation of the consent application. To 
ensure the quickest and most complete review, this information should be submitted at the time of application. In the absence of this information, it may 
not be possible to do a complete review within the legislated time frame for making a decision. As a result, the application may be refused. 

1. Applicant and Ownership Information

Name of Legal Owner(s) Telephone: 

Address Postal Code 

Email 

Contact Information, if different than owner (this may be a person/firm acting on behalf of the owner) 

Name of Contact Telephone: 

Address Postal Code 

Email 

Mortgage, Line of Credit, Charges, or other encumbrances in respect of the subject land 

Name Address 

DC # Telephone/Fax Email 

2. Location and Description of the Subject Land

Concession Lot Registered Plan/Lot(s)/block(s) 

Street/Emergency No. Street/Road Reference Plan No. Part Number(s) 

Width of street/road ________m 
 Municipal year round

maintained road
 MTO / County Road  Seasonal / Private Road

Frontage (m) Entire Property Affected Area (is amendment does not affect entire property) 

Depth (m) Area (hectares) 

SUMMARY OF FEES 

LOT CREATION/BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT: $2500 
EASEMENT/OTHER: $2000 
CHANGE OF CONDITIONS TO A CONSENT 
DECISION: $1000 
*NVCA FEE IF IN REGULATED OR NHS AREA

X

Mansfield Ski Club Inc. 416-312-5276

628213 Sideroad 15, Mansfield, Ontario L9V 0T9

finley.mcewen@gmail.com

Mulmur Cons 6E PT  Lots 15 16 17 PT RD ALLOW PLAN 86 PT 7R2240 Part 1 RP 7R455 Part 1 and 2 RP7R 4660 Part 1 RP 
7R6323 Part 1 to 3 RP 7R6308 Parts 1 to 3



2 

3. Purpose of this Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box) 

 Transfer
 A charge

 Creation of a new lot
 A lease

 Addition to a lot
 A correction of title

 An easement
 Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc. 

Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged 

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing Information

Frontage (m) Severed Retained 

Depth (m) 

Area (m) 

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired 

Existing Use Proposed Use 

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures 

Type of 
Building or 
Structure 

Set Backs (m) Height 
(m) 

Dimensions 
(m x m) 

Area 
(m2) 

Date of 
Construction / 

Proposed 
Construction 

Time use has 
continued (for 

existing 
buildings & 
structures) 

Front Rear Side Side 

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

Water 
 Private Well
 Communal Well
 Municipal Water
 Other: __________

Sewage Disposal 
 Private Septic
 Communal Septic
 Other:_______________

Storm Drainage 
 Sewer
 Ditches
 Swales
 Other: _____________

Tile Drainage 
 No
 Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

X

                                                                                                          Consent requested to remove the following approval condition: "The existing hydro pole be relocated 
outside of the easement."  The easement contains the following provision: "The Grantor, after the date when the first new residential unit in the planned Mansfield Ski Club Village is 
occupied, will maintain at its sole cost, the driving surface..". The Applicant will relocate the two hydro poles which encroach on the easement at the same time. Final wording of the easement 
to be approved by Mulmur solicitor.



3 

6. Zoning and Official Plan Information

Current Zoning Current Official Plan 

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan, 
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Minister’s Zoning Order 
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision: 

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the 
Planning Act? 

File #:  Status: 

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan 

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specified? Please check the 
appropriate boxes, if any apply. 

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject 
Land, unless otherwise specific 
(indicate approximate distance) 

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities 

A Landfill 

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland) 

A locally significant wetland 

Flood Plain 

A rehabilitated mine site 

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land 

An active mine site 

An industrial or commercial use (specify uses) 

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per 
day? 

 Yes  No

If yes, attach a servicing options report and hydro geological report 

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan?  Yes  No

Please provide plan number________________________________ and date approved by OMAFRA ______________________________________ 

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands?  Yes  No

If yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.ca/departments/planning 

http://mulmur.ca/departments/planning


4 

7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application: 

Alter the boundary of a settlement area? 
 Yes  No

Create a new settlement area?  Yes  No

Remove lands from an employment area?  Yes  No

If yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission 

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply?  Yes  No

If yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission 

Is the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements 
issued under subsection 3(1) of the Planning Act: 

 Yes  No

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may 
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of 

consistency. 

Signature 

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area?  Yes  No

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area?  Yes  No

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the 
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan: 

 Yes  No

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may 
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of 

consistency. 

Signature 

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a 
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act? 

 Yes  No  Unknown

If yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application: ___________________________________________________ 

If this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application 

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?  Yes  No

If yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use: 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Consent requested to remove the following approval condition: "The existing hydro pole be relocated outside of the easement."  The easement 
contains the following provision: "The Grantor, after the date when the first new residential unit in the planned Mansfield Ski Club Village is 
occupied, will maintain at its sole cost, the driving surface..". The Applicant will relocate the two hydro poles which encroach on the easement at 
the same time. Final wording of the easement to be approved by Mulmur solicitor.

X

Finley McEwen

Finley McEwen



5 

Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel  Yes  No

If yes, provide details: 

9. Other Information

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation 
authority, etc. 

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following: 

 The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
 The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
 The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
 The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
 The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

 The existing uses on adjacent lands
 The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
 The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

X



6 

AUTHORIZATION, DECLARATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

OWNERS AUTHORIZATION 

I, ______________________________________________, am the owner of the lands subject to this application hereby agree to the following: 

1. Township staff or their representatives are authorized to enter my property for the purposes of evaluating this application.

2. I acknowledge and agree to pay all costs associated with the processing and evaluation of this application, including any peer reviews
and consulting fees. These costs may be deducted from the deposit or invoiced directly, at the discretion of the Township. Should this
application be appealed to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal, I am aware that I will be responsible and agree to pay all fees related to
the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal process.

3. For the purposes of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, I authorize and consent to the use by or the disclosure to
any person or public body of any personal information that is collected under the authority of the Planning Act for the purposes of
processing this application, and further I authorize my agent for this application to provide any of my personal inflation that will be included
in this application or collected during the processing of this application.

4. I authorized _______________________________________________________ to make this application of my behalf.

Date Signature of Owner 

Signature of Owner 

SWORN DECLARATION OF APPLICANT 

I,_______________________________________________ of the _____________________________________ in the ____________________-

_________________ make oath and say (or solemnly declare) that the information contained in this application is true and that the information 

contained in the documents that accompany this application is true. 

Sworn (or declared) before me at the ______________________________ in the _______________________________ 

this ________________ day of ________________________________ 20____. 

Commissioner of Oaths       Applicant 

      Applicant 

Mansfield Ski Club Inc.

Nov 18, 2020

EBANEHITA JOAN EDEKO PROVINCE OF
ONTARIO

CITY OF TORONTO

CITY OF TORONTO PROVINCE OF ONTARIO

24TH NOVEMBER 20

EBANEHITA JOAN EDEKO
BARRISTER, SOLICITOR & NOTARY PUBLIC



Mansfield Ski Club Inc. 
628213, Side Rd 15 
Mansfield, ON 
L9V 0T9 

November 20, 2020 

Township of Mulmur 
758070 2 Line E 
Mulmur, ON  
L9V 0G8 

Re: Application for Consent, Roll Number 22-16-000-001-24200-0000 

Attention: Tracey Atkinson, CAO 

Dear Tracey, 

Please find enclosed an Application for Consent related to the recent approval for an easement on the 
above-mentioned property. The approval was granted with the following conditions: 

· Any existing mature trees within the new easement be relocated elsewhere on the subject lands
to the satisfaction of the Township.

· The existing hydro pole be relocated outside of the easement.

The area has been surveyed and no mature trees need to be relocated for the easement. The new 
easement will contain a provision stipulating that “The Grantor, after the date when the first new 
residential unit in the planned Mansfield Ski Club Village is occupied, will maintain at its sole cost, the 
driving surface on Parts 19, 20, 5, 3, 6, 7 and 8 including plowing, sanding, and grading to a reasonable 
standard for comparable gravel access roads. The grantor will also relocate or bury any encroaching 
hydro poles to facilitate free passage.” Once registered the obligation will bind the applicant. We 
therefore request the Application for Consent be amended to remove the conditions.  

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you require any further information. 

Yours Truly, 

Finley McEwen 







DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P 13, as amended) 

FILE NO. B1-2020 
RE:   Consent Application 
Date of Mailing:  July 10, 2020 

The following decision was reached by the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment at the meeting on July 7, 
2020: 

Application No. B1/2020 a consent application to relinquish an existing easement over lands owned by Mansfield 
Ski Club in favour of a new easement that will align with a driveway in the vicinity of the existing parking lot.  
The subject lands are owned by Mansfield Ski Club Inc., Rosalie Tough, Donald William Tough, Mark Lautens and 
2724264 Ontario Corp and legally described as Lots 15 And 16, Concession 6 Ehs (Pt Blk 20, Pl 7m-4 And Part Lot 
15 & 16 Concession 6 EHS And Part Of block B, Plan 86, Mulmur; Des As Pts 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, Plan 7r-6574), was 
approved subject to the following conditions: 

• This easement applies to LOTS 15 and 16, CONCESSION 6 EHS (PT BLK 20, PL 7M-4 AND PART LOT 15 & 16
CONCESSION 6 EHS AND PART OFBLOCK B, PLAN 86, MULMUR; DES AS PTS 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, PLAN 7R-
6574)  and is in favour of parcel rolls 117801 (Tough), 117600 (Lautens), and 117700 (2724264 Ontario
Corp.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after the date
of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• The existing easement be deregistered or an undertaking by the solicitor that the existing easement be
deregistered within 30 days of the registration of the new easement.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.

• Any existing mature trees within the new easement be relocated elsewhere on the subject lands to the
satisfaction of the Township.

• The existing hydro pole be relocated outside of the easement.

REASON:   conforms to the Township’s Official Plan.  

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 
Dated this 10th day of July, 2020 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Acting Clerk 

  Township of Mulmur  

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal is July 31, 2020 

NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE LOCAL PLANNING APPEAL TRIBUNAL (LPAT) 
The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of the date of 
this notice, appeal to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving personally or sending 
by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with Appellant Form (A1) available 
from the Township office or from the LPAT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out the objection to the decision and the 
reasons for the objection and accompanied by the applicable fee payable by certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER 
OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal as payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to 
the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Acting Clerk   Telephone: (705) 466-3341   
tatkinson@mulmur.ca                Fax:  (705) 466-2922 



CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 

758070 2ND LINE  EAST 

MULMUR, ONTARIO 

L9V 0G8 

NOTICE OF A COMPLETE APPLICATION AND A PUBLIC MEETING 

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended. 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars: 

MEETING DATE AND TIME: January 6, 2021 at 1:00pm 

APPLICATION NUMBER: B1-2020 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Mansfield Ski Club Inc. 

   Rosalie Tough 

   Donald William Tough 

  Mark Lautens 

 2724264 Ontario Corp  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority 
of members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada   Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device) and with either digital 
audio or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the 
digital address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID 
when prompted.  

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097  Meeting ID: 834 0895 7097 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83408957097


LOCATION:  LOTS 15 and 16, CONCESSION 6 EHS (PT BLK 20, PL 7M-4 AND PART 

LOT 15 & 16 CONCESSION 6 EHS AND PART OF BLOCK B, PLAN 86, 

MULMUR; DES AS PTS 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, PLAN 7R-6574) 

PURPOSE:   CONSENT APPLICATION TO AMEND TWO (2) CONDITONS OF 
CONSENT APPROVAL. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours. 

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written 
submissions to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to 
give a provisional consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If 
you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in 
respect of the proposed consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment.

See Map on next page.  For illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey.

A digital version is available by email. 

Figure 1: Subject Lands 

mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca


Figure 2: Applicants Reference Survey 

Dated December 17, 2020



Page 1 of 8 

TO:  

FROM: 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT:  

PLANNING REPORT 

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 

James Hunter Senior Planner BURPL

January 6, 2021 

B1-2020 Mansfield Ski Club Consent Application 

PURPOSE 

The applicant is seeking to Amend two (2) conditions from a previously approved Consent 
(Easement) application (B1-2020, July 2020).  

FILE NO B1-2020 

ROLL NO 22160000124200 

OWNER Mansfield Ski Club Inc 

Rosalie Tough 

Donald William Tough 

Mark Lautens 

2724264 Ontario Corp  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 15 and 16, CONCESSION 6 EHS (PT 
BLK 20, PL 7M-4 AND PART LOT 15 & 16 
CONCESSION 6 EHS AND PART 
OFBLOCK B, PLAN 86, MULMUR; DES AS 
PTS 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, PLAN 7R-6574) 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Recreation, Estate Residential 

ZONING: Recreational Exception One Holding (RE-1-
H), Estate Residential (ER) 

NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 

NVCA Regulated: Yes (beyond regulated area) 

Application Submission Date: November 24, 2020 

Public Meeting Date: Wednesday January 6, 2021 



Page 2 of 8 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONFIGURATIONS 

The existing and proposed easement configurations are provided on the attached draft 
survey, included as Appendix 1. 

BACKGROUND 

The Mansfield Ski Club is in the process of securing approvals from the Township to 
develop the resort, including new dwellings, townhomes, and improvements to the ski 
terrain and lift equipment. As part of the Site Plan Approval process, the parking area will 
be further defined and delineated. On May 1st, 2020, the Mansfield Ski Club Inc. submitted 
a Consent application to relinquish an existing easement over their lands, to replace the 
easement with a new easement following the new driveway location. A Public Meeting was 
held on July 7th, 2020, where the Consent application was approved with a number of 
conditions.  

The applicant has now requested that the approved Conditions be amended to remove the 
following two (2) conditions: 

1. Any existing mature trees within the new easement be relocated elsewhere on the
subject lands to the satisfaction of the Township.

2. The existing hydro pole be relocated outside of the easement.

It is our understanding that the applicant has surveyed the area within the easement and 
there are no mature trees within the easement required to be relocated.  

The applicant wishes to maintain the location of all existing hydro poles within the 
easement and those encroaching, until the time of future development when it is feasible 
to relocate the services underground.  

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial 
interest related to land use planning and development.  

The application is consistent with the PPS. 

Growth Plan (August 2020) 

The Growth Plan builds on the PPS together with other Provincial Plans to inform 
decision-making regarding growth management and environmental protection particular to 
the GGH. The Growth Plan provides high-level policy direction relating to the development 
of healthy, safe, and balanced communities.  



Page 3 of 8 

The application conforms to or does not conflict with the Growth Plan. 

Niagara Escarpment Plan (2017) 

The purpose of the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) is to provide for the maintenance and 
protection of the plan’s areas, and to ensure that development is compatible with the 
natural environment.  

The subject lands are located outside of the plans area. The NEP does not apply. 

Strategic Plan 

The application does not offend the Strategic Plan. 

Official Plan 

The subject lands are designated ‘Recreation’ and ‘Estate Residential’. 

The lands fall within the Mansfield North Recreation Area, defined on Schedule A1 of the 
Official Plan. The Official Plan encourages and promotes the development of recreational 
facilities and related uses.  

The Official Plan (OP) contains policy direction relating to development and consent 
applications in section 5.36 and 5.37. The Plan does not contain specific policy direction 
regarding easements. 

Figure 1: Land Use Designation 



Page 4 of 8 

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are zoned ‘Recreational Exception One Holding (RE-1-H)’ and ‘Estate 
Residential (ER)’.  

The site-specific recreational zoning relates to the proposed accommodations at the ski 
club and satisfying a number of requirements (sign-offs, clearances, etc.). A driveway is 
permitted in both zones. 

The subject application does not propose a change or impact the zone. 

Figure 2: Zoning 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The costs of processing with the application are borne by the applicants. 

AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Public and agency comments are being provided as separate correspondence to this 
report.  



Page 5 of 8 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The easement is consistent with Provincial Policy and conforms to or does not conflict with 
Provincial Plans, and conforms to the Official Plan and Zoning By-law.  

Subject to agency and public comments, it is recommended that this application to amend 
two (2) conditions of Consent be approved with the conditions attached. 

Respectfully submitted, 

______________________________
Senior Planner, BURPl.  



Page 6 of 8 

DRAFT DECISION 

Date:  January 6, 2021 

Moved by:  ________________________ 

Seconded by: _________________________ 

That Application No. B1-2020, submitted by Mansfield Ski Club Inc., Rosalie Tough, 
Donald William Tough, Mark Lautens and 2724264 Ontario Corp. to amend conditions of 
Consent be approved, subject to the following: 

• This easement applies to LOTS 15 and 16, CONCESSION 6 EHS (PT BLK 20, PL
7M-4 AND PART LOT 15 & 16 CONCESSION 6 EHS AND PART OF BLOCK B,
PLAN 86, MULMUR; DES AS PTS 19,20,5,3,6,7 & 8, PLAN 7R-6574) and is in
favour of parcel rolls 117801 (Tough), 117600 (Lautens), and 117700 (724264
Ontario Corp.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject consent be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to
one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file
at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• That the Township’s solicitor confirms, at the applicants expense, that the wording
of the provision and timing of servicing as stipulated by the applicant is satisfactory,
as it applies to the new easement; “The Grantor, after the date when the first new
residential unit in the planned Mansfield Ski Club Village is occupied, will maintain
at its sole cost, the driving surface on Parts 19, 20, 5, 3, 6, 7 and 8 including
plowing, sanding, and grading to a reasonable standard for comparable gravel
access roads. The grantor will also relocate or bury any encroaching hydro poles to
facilitate free passage”.

• That the applicant provides a copy of the survey to the Township, demonstrating
that there are no mature trees within the easement required to be relocated.

• That all conditions be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision
where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.



Page 7 of 8 

Yea Nay 

  Ken Cufaro  

  Earl Hawkins 

  Kim Lyon 

  Paul Mills  

  Bart Wysokinski 



Page 8 of 8 

Appendix 1: Applicant’s Reference Survey 



B1-2020 (628213 15th SR) - OP

Legend
Parcels

Hamlet Residential

Open Space Recreation

Highway Commercial

Estate Residential Special Policy Area One

Extractive Industrial

Niagara Escarpment - Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Protected Area

Business Park Transition

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Core

Natural Area

Former Waste Disposal Area (FWD)

Niagara Escarpment - Rural

Niagara Escarpment - Natural Area

Open Space

Rural

Hamlet

Estate Residential

Commercial

Candidate Recreational Lands

Recreational

Niagara Escarpment - Extractive Industrial

Agricultural

Institutional

Community

Waste Disposal Industrial



B1-2020 (628213 15th SR) - Zoning

Legend
NVCA

Parcels

Agricultural

Business Park Core Holding

Business Park Gateway Holding

Rural Commercial

Business Park Transition Holding

Business Park Gateway

Business Park Transition

Countryside

Rural

Environmental Protection

Open Space

Recreational

Hamlet Residential

Rural Residential

Estate Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Institutional

Extractive Industrial

Waste Disposal Industrial

Niagara Escarpment Commission


	2021 01 06 COA Agenda
	5.0 07 07 2020 COA Minutes
	7.1.0 B7-2020  Application for Consent DC Rutledge
	7.1.1 B7-2020 Rutledge_Notice
	7.1.2 B7-2020 Rutledge_Staff Report
	7.1.3 B7-2020 GIS OP
	7.1.3 B7-2020 GIS Zoning
	7.2.0 B8 - site plan ferris BRWEC5C687B2C51_001119
	7.2.0 B8 -Application for Consent Ferris
	7.2.1 B8-2020 Ferris_Notice
	7.2.2 B8-2020 Ferris_Staff Report
	7.2.3 B8-2020 GIS OP
	7.2.3 B8-2020 GIS Zoning
	7.3.0 B7-2018 19.06.19 PROPOSED SEVERANCE (1)
	Sheets and Views
	19.06.18 SITE SEVERENCE-SP-01
	19.06.18 SITE SEVERENCE-SP-02


	7.3.0 B7-2018 19.06.19 PROPOSED SEVERANCE drawing
	Farm 2 - Severance area 19-06-24
	FARM 2 SEVERANCE B

	7.3.0 B7-2018 DIETRICH SEVERANCE APPLICATION
	SP-01
	SP-02

	7.3.1 B7-2018 Mockingbird_Notice
	7.3.1 B7-2018 NVCA Oct 2019 comments
	7.3.2 B7-2018 Addendum Report January 2021
	7.3.2 B7-2018 Addendum Report
	7.3.2 B7-2018 Mockingbird Report
	7.3.2 B7-2018 MOckingham Draft Decision
	7.3.3 B7-2018 GIS OP
	7.3.3 B7-2018 GIS Zoning
	7.4.0 B1 -easement Condition application-for-consent - November 24
	7.4.0 B1 MSC Covering Letter for November 20 2020 CoA App
	7.4.0 B1 Pages from A&D to Register New ROW and Mtce Agt (for consent)
	7.4.0 B1-2020 Mansfield Ski Easement - Consent - Notice of Decision
	7.4.1 B1-2020 Mansfield_Notice
	7.4.2 B1-2020 Mansfield_Staff Report
	7.4.3 B1-2020 GIS OP
	7.4.3 B1-2020 GIS Zoning



